












BOARD OF EDUCATION
MEETING

  

  

MARCH 6, 2006

1



BOARD OF EDUCATION
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OMAHA, NEBRASKA

BUSINESS MEETING STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER
7:00 P.M. 5606 SOUTH 147th STREET

MARCH 6, 2006
AGENDA

Call to Order

A. Call to Order

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call

D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on
agenda items only. Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the
meeting begins.

E. Routine Matters*
1. *Approval of Board of Education Minutes – February 20, 2006
2. *Approval of Bills
3. *Receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File

F. Information Items
1. Employees of the Month
2. Superintendent’s Report
3. Board Comments/Announcement
4. Report from Student Representatives

G. Unfinished Business:
1. Approval of Policy 8000 – General Policy Statement
2. Approval of Policy 10000 – Shared Decision Making

H. New Business
1. Approval of Rule 10000.1 – Shared Decision Making - Site Based Planning and Shared

Decision Making
2. Approval of Rule 4511.1 – Personnel – Voluntary Early Separation Program
3. Approval of Rule 5110.1 – Pupil Services – Transfer of Students within the District
4. *Reaffirm Policy 6031 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – School Day for Students
5. *Reaffirm Policy 6040 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Ceremonies and

Observances
6. *Reaffirm Policy 6041 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Holiday Observances-

Laws and Requirements
7. *Reaffirm Policy 6610 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Multi-Cultural Education
8. *Reaffirm Policy 6635 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Students With Disabilities
9. *Reaffirm Rule 6020.1 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – School Calendar
10. *Reaffirm Rule 6031.1 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – School Day for Students
11. *Reaffirm Rule 6040.1 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Ceremonies and

Observances
12. *Reaffirm Rule 6610.1 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Multi-Cultural Education

2



Agenda
March 6, 2006
Page 2

13. Approval of Beadle Middle School Design Development
14. Award Neihardt Elementary Floor Covering Contract
15. Award Willowdale Elementary Floor Covering Contract
16. Award Ezra Elementary Floor Covering Contract
17. Award Kiewit Middle School Floor Covering Contract
18. Award Rockwell Elementary HVAC Contract
19. Approval of Ackerman Elementary Long Lead Materials Contract
20. Award Hollow Metal Doors and Frame Replacement Contract
21. Administrator for Hire
22. Approval of Personnel Actions: Resignations, and New Hires
23. Litigation (Executive Session)
24. Land Acquisition (Executive Session)

I. Reports
1. Enrollment Report
2. Legislative Update

J. Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar
1. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, March 13, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
2. Town Hall Meeting on Tuesday, March 14, 2006 at 7 p.m. at Millard South High School
3. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, March 20, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
4. Town Hall Meeting on Monday, March 27, 2006 at 7 p.m. at Millard North High School
5. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, April 3, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration

Center, 5606 South 147th Street
6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, April 17, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic. Please
make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

L. Adjournment

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single
motion. Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member.

3



.BOARD OF EDUCATION
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OMAHA, NEBRASKA

BUSINESS MEETING STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER
7:00 P.M. 5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET

MARCH 6, 2006

ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM
A. Call to Order

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call

D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on
agenda items only. Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President prior to the
meeting.

*E.1. Motion by , seconded by, ______________, to approve the Board of Education
Minutes – February 20, 2006. (See enclosure.)

*E.2. Motion by , seconded by , to approve the bills. (See
Enclosures.)

*E.3. Motion by , seconded by , to receive the Treasurer’s Report
and Place on File. (See enclosure.)

F.1. Employees of the Month

F.2. Superintendent’s Comments

F.3. Board Comments/Announcements

F.4. Report from Student Representatives

G.1. Motion by , seconded by, _____________, to approve Policy 8000 – General
Policy Statement. (See enclosures.)

G.2. Motion by , seconded by, _____________, to approve Policy 10000 – Shared
Decision Making. (See enclosures.)

H.1. Motion by , seconded by, ______________, to approve Rule 10000.1 – Shared
Decision Making – Site Based Planning and Shared Decision Making. (See enclosure.)

H.2. Motion by , seconded by, ______________ to approve Rule 4511.1 – Personnel –
Voluntary Early Separation Program. (See Enclosure.)

H.3. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Rule 5110.1 - Pupil
Services – Transfer of Students within the District. (See enclosure.)

4



Administrative Memorandum
March 6, 2006
Page 2

H.4.-H.12. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to reaffirm Policy 6031 –
Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – School Day for School; Policy 6040 –
Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Ceremonies and Observances; Policy 6041 –
Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Holiday Observances-Laws and
Requirements; Policy 6610 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Multi-Cultural
Education; Policy 6635 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Students With
Disabilities; Rule 6020.1 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – School Calendar;
Rule 6031.1 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – School Day for Students; Rule
6040.1 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Ceremonies and Observances; Rule
6610.1 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Multi-Cultural Education. (See
enclosures.)

H.13. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, It is recommended that the
design development plans for the additions to Beadle Middle School be approved as submitted.
(See enclosure.)

H.14. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, that the contract for the
Neihardt floor covering replacement project be awarded to Commercial Flooring in the amount
of $100,387 (with such amount including the base bid and Alternate #1) and that the Associate
Superintendent for General Administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all
documents related to such project. (See enclosure.)

H.15. Motion by ______________, seconded by___________________, that the contract for the
Willowdale floor covering replacement project be awarded to Floor Plan, Inc. in the amount of
$83,686 (with such amount including the base bid and Alternate #1) and that the Associate
Superintendent for General Administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all
documents related to such project.. (See enclosure.)

H.16. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, that the contract for the Ezra
floor covering replacement project be awarded to Commercial Flooring in the amount of
$78,313 (with such amount including the base bid and Alternate #1) and that the Associate
Superintendent for General Administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all
documents related to such project.. (See enclosure.)

H.17. Motion by ______________, seconded by _________________, that the contract for the
Kiewit Middle School floor covering replacement project be awarded to Midwest Flooring in
the amount of $90,700 (with such amount including the base bid and Alternate #4) and that the
Associate Superintendent for General Administration be authorized and directed to execute any
and all documents related to such project. (See enclosure.)

H.18. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, that the contract for Phase II of
the HVAC renovation project at Rockwell Elementary School be awarded to the Ray Martin
Company in the amount of $142,300 (with such amount including the base bid only) and that
the Associate Superintendent for General Administration be authorized and directed to execute
any and all documents related to such project. (See enclosure.)

5



Administrative Memorandum
March 6, 2006
Page 3

H.19. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, that contracts for long lead
items for the Ackerman Elementary School project be awarded as follows: (1) to Gartner &
Associates Company, Inc. for a packaged roof top HVAC unit in the amount of $54,623; (2) to
Western Laminates, Inc. for manufactured casework in the amount of $69,340; and (3) to
Metal Doors and Hardware for hollow metal frames, how metal doors, wood doors, and
hardware in the amount of $24,718; and, further, that the Associate Superintendent for General
Administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such
project. (See enclosure.)

H.20. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, that the contract for the
replacement of hollow metal doors and frames at various sites in the District be awarded to
Rife Construction, Inc. in the amount of $123,466 (with such amount including the base bid
plus Alternates #1, #2, #3, #4, and #6 and with the following portions of Alternate #5: doors
HO111A, HO111B, and HO1117) and, further, that the Associate Superintendent for General
Administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such
project. (See enclosure.)

H.21. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve administrator for
hire: Jon Lopez, Executive Director of Planning and Evaluation. (See enclosure.)

H.22. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Personnel Actions:
Resignations, and New Hires. (See enclosure.)

H.23. Litigation (Executive Session)

H.24. Land Acquisition (Executive Session)

I. Reports:
1. Enrollment Report
2. Legislative Update

J. Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar
1. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, March 13, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
2. Town Hall Meeting on Tuesday, March 14, 2006 at 7 p.m. at Millard South High School
3. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, March 20, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
4. Town Hall Meeting on Monday, March 27, 2006 at 7 p.m. at Millard North High School
5. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, April 3, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration

Center, 5606 South 147th Street
6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, April 17, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic. Please
make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

L. Adjournment

6



All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single
motion. Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member.

7



Enclosure E.1.
March 6, 2006

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO 17

A meeting was held of the Board of Education of the School District No. 17, in the County of
Douglas in the State of Nebraska. This meeting was convened in open and public session at 7:00
p.m., Monday, February 20, 2006, at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th
Street.

PRESENT: Brad Burwell Julie Johnson, Jean Stothert, and Linda Poole, and Mike
Kennedy

ABSENT: Mike Pate

Notice of this meeting was given to all members of the Board of Education and a copy of their
Acknowledgment of Receipt of Notice and the agenda are attached to these minutes.
Availability of the agenda was communicated in advance notice and in the notice of the Board of
Education of this meeting. All proceedings hereafter shown were taken while the convened
meeting was open to the attendance of the public.
-----------------------------------------------------------------------

At 7:00 p.m. Brad Burwell called the meeting to order and asked everyone to say the Pledge of
Allegiance.

Roll call was taken and Brad Burwell, Jean Stothert, Julie Johnson, Linda Poole, and Mike
Kennedy were present. Mike Pate was absent from the meeting.

Motion by Mike Kennedy, seconded by Julie Johnson, to excuse Mike Pate from the meeting.
Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Mike Kennedy, seconded by Jean Stothert, to approve the Board of Education
Minutes of Monday, February 6, 2006, to approve bills, and to receive the treasurer’s report and
place on file. Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried.

Jean Stothert provided the summary of the Board Committee of the Whole meeting on Monday,
February 13, 2006. The topics of discussion included Rule 1310.1 – Community Complaints,
and Policy 10000 – Shared Decision Making.

Superintendent’s Report:

1. The first Town Hall meeting will be held on Monday, February 27, 2006 at 7 p.m. at
Millard West High School. An announcement will be sent out to the Millard West
area by Connect-Ed about the meeting. The other schools will have announcements
in their newsletters and Connect-Ed will be used at Millard South and Millard North.

2. The presentations are continuing on to a variety of groups from homeowners to civic
organizations. The last one is scheduled for March 16, 2006.

3. Legislative Committee meetings will be coming to an end by next week, and then the
bills will be out on the floor, and then probably will be amendments to those bills.

8



Board of Education Minutes
February 20, 2006
Page 2

4. The Coalition continues to meet on a weekly basis trying to come up with the best
legislative strategies.

5. On Tuesday, February 28, 2006 the Coalition and the board presidents will meeting,
the Superintendent’s are scheduled to meet with the Governor on March 1, 2006, and
on Saturday, March 11, 2006, there will be a meeting with Congressman Osborne and
two members from each board of education of the Coalition.

Comments from the Board:

Mike Kennedy had the opportunity to talk with two parents who option two of their children into
Millard, and have one in the Omaha Public Schools. They are concerned about OPS wanting to
take away the option of attending other school districts.

Mr. Kennedy attended the NSBA Federal Relations Network Conference in Washington, D.C.
He talked with several congressional delegations. He also had the opportunity to visit board
members from Tennessee and Minnesota who have heard about the OPS takeover, and are
supportive of Millard’s efforts. Both said that Millard would not want a Charlotte/Mecklenburg
situation where students are constantly bused based on arbitrary quotas, and that don’t match the
community that they serve. The students do not have a choice to attend programs that they want
to attend.

Julie Johnson reminded the other board members she will not be at the Board meeting on
Monday, March 6, 2006 and also, the Town Hall meeting on March 14, 2006.

Dr. Johnson expressed her congratulations to the Millard South wrestling team.

Jean Stothert said she will be attending the Town Hall meeting next week. She was unable to
attend the last Healthy School meeting, but another meeting will be held in June, and she plans
on attending that meeting

Mrs. Stothert said she attended the unofficial Metropolitan Area Board’s of Education meeting
last week and they talked about Advanced Placement classes and how to promote more students
to take the exam.

Mrs. Stothert reported she will not be at the Monday, March 6, 2006 board of education meeting,
because she will be out of town.

Mrs. Stothert said was in Lincoln at a meeting where both Doug Christensen and Ron Raikes
spoke. The both said they supported the notion of a single community, but they didn’t feel there
needed to be one school district, and supported multiple school districts.

Linda Poole attended the Federal Relations Network Conference. The Nebraska delegation met
with Congressmen Fortenberry, Senator Hagel and Senator Nelson. The delegation met with
staffers from Congressman Osborne’s and Lee Terry’s offices. The group talked about full

9



Board of Education Minutes
February 20, 2006
Page 3

funding of special education and IDEA. They also talked about vouchers, NCLB, and
technology issues.

The delegation had the opportunity to have lunch with Polly Feis, deputy commissioner of
education from Nebraska. She was there to talk about Perkins money, and how some of the
money may be lost. She asked the Nebraska delegation to talk about the Perkins funds when
talking with their Washington representatives.

At the Nebraska Delegation breakfast Mrs. Poole did meet with Congressman Lee Terry.
Congressman Terry said he was disappointed that the National School Boards Association had
not supported his NCLB bill. Since being back in Nebraska she has talked to the national
representatives, Anne Bryant, and Mike Resnick, lead lobbyist for NSBA, and they indicated
they would contact Congressman Terry’s office. Whether NSBA will endorse Congressman
Terry’s bill, Mrs. Poole was unsure.

Mrs. Poole said she will be attending the Nebraska Association of School Boards Legislative
Issues Conference. At this meeting is an opportunity to meet with the chairs of all of the
different legislative committees. On Sunday, Mike Resnick, NSBA lobbyist, will be a speaker.

Governor Heineman has invited Mrs. Poole to attend the Pandemic Flu Summit on Thursday
afternoon.

Two weeks ago Mrs. Poole attended a coffee at Millard West where Dr. Lutz provided
information on the ‘One City One School District’ issue. Last week she attended the retired
administrator’s luncheon where Dr. Lutz presented to the group on the OPS issue. All of the
administrators a very supportive of Millard’s efforts and they wanted to know how they could
help.

Brad Burwell will be at the PTO meeting on Tuesday, February 21, 2006. He will be presenting
to the Ackerman PTO on April 11, 2006.

Mr. Burwell said the two topics that will be covered at the Town Hall meeting will be strategic
planning and the attempted takeover of the school district. When they receive the power point
they can talk about what each member will be responsible for during the presentation.

Mr. Burwell introduced Boy Scout Troop 435 from Harvey Oaks. The boys are working on their
communication badges

Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Jean Stothert, to approve Rule 1310.1 – Community –
Complaints. Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Mike Kennedy, seconded by Jean Stothert, to approve Rule 6130.1 – Curriculum,
Instruction, and Assessment – Curriculum Frameworks. Upon roll call vote, all members voted
aye. Motion carried.

Linda Poole provided the first reading of Policy 8000 – General Policy Statement. This policy
will be on the next board agenda for approval.

10



Board of Education Minutes
February 20, 2006
Page 4

Jean Stothert provided the first reading of Policy 10000 – Shared Decision Making. This policy
will be on the next board agenda for approval.

Motion by Julie Johnson, seconded by Jean Stothert, to approve the Framework for Family
Consumer Science. Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Jean Stothert, seconded by Julie Johnson, to approve the Framework for World
Languages. Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Jean Stothert, seconded by Linda Poole, that the contract for the construction of the
storage building at Buell Stadium be awarded to CYC/Remcon in the amount of $195,077 (with such
amount including the Base Bid and Alternate No. 1), and, that the Associate Superintendent for General
Administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such project. Upon
roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Julie Johnson, seconded by Jean Stothert, to appoint Jean Stothert, Mike Kennedy,
and Linda Poole as the committee to consider the request to name the swimming facility at
MSHS. Julie Johnson withdrew her motion. Motion by Julie Johnson, seconded by Jean
Stothert, to appoint Jean Stothert, Mike Kennedy, and Linda Poole as the committee to consider
the request to name the swimming facility at MSHS and the street in front of Morton
Elementary. Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Julie Johnson, seconded by Jean Stothert, to approve entering into collective
bargaining with EPAM for the 2006-07 school year and appoint Steve Moore, and Kirby Eltiste
to represent the district in the collective bargaining sessions. Upon roll call vote, all members
voted aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Jean Stothert, to approve Administrators for Hire: Lori
Jasa as the principal at Kiewit Middle School and Jim Sutfin as the Director of Personnel. Upon
roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Jean Stothert, seconded by Julie Johnson, to approve personnel actions: Resignations:
Stacey Mielke, Marlo Chandler, Gloria Benscoter, Amanda Larsen, Tracy Weiss, Kimberly
Kidder, Cheryl Glasford, Elizabeth Braun, Angela Lanoha, Kathy Stockham, Rebecca Mooss,
George Conrad; Leaves of Absence: Annette Markin and Kelly Buscher; Voluntary Early
Separations: Curtis Anderson, Marguerite Bay, Pamela Berki, Billy Butler, Linda Elliott, Nonnie
Frenzer, Richard Glesman, Beverly Johnson, Linda Jones, Jean Koerten, Margaret Kubat,
Roseanne Lenz, Janice Lorenzen, Earl Mahan, Thomas Mosser, Shirley Rooker, Paul Sanders,
Elizabeth Sample, Linda Shirck, Eugene Starmer; and New Hires: Sabine Fleshner, Stacey
Noble, Casey Hoffman. (See enclosure.)

Litigation, Land Acquisition, and Collective Bargaining were delayed to the end of the meeting
for Executive Session.

Reports given included: A Legislative Update, a Construction Report, Infinite Campus Report
Staff Development Report, Martin Luther King Day Staff Development Report, Laptop

11





13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Policy 8000 – General Policy Statement

MEETING DATE: March 6, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Office of the Superintendent

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Second Reading of Policy 8000 – General Policy Statement

ACTION DESIRED: APPROVAL XX

BACKGROUND:

We are moving to a new server for the board policies. We will also be using a new program to upload those
policies to the Internet. This move will make the formatting of all polices more consistent and allow for some
enhanced search features.

The language we added to this policy will allow us to change the formatting on policies that have previously
been approved. We will be adjusting all policies that are not currently in standard outline format.

OPTIONS AND ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:

RECOMMENDATION: Approval after the second reading

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION:

TIMELINE:

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Angelo Passarelli

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:
(Signature)

BOARD ACTION:

32



General Policy Statement 8000

The Millard School Board facilitates the performance of its statutory responsibilities by establishing
District policies. Establishing District policies is a legislative function of the Board. The policies adopted
by the Millard School Board establish and publish the guidelines and goals for the Millard School District
community, its residents, students, staff, and administration.

The Board shall establish all general policies for implementation by the Superintendent. The policies shall
be written and, after adoption by the Board, shall be used in the management and operation of the District.
All policies will be adjusted to follow the standard outline format.

Policies that are appropriate to the educational responsibility to provide education to students and staff, and
that prescribe the rules and regulations for the conduct and management of the operations of the District
shall be established with the advice of the Superintendent.

After development and adoption of Board policies, the Board shall continue to perform its legislative
functions by reviewing reports on the policies and other matters concerning those policies that come before
the Board. The policies should be reviewed from time to time to determine the effectiveness of the policies
and the need for amendment, repeal, or other disposition of the policy.

All proposals for a policy or policies shall be submitted to the Board in writing after being first submitted in
writing to the Superintendent who will consult with and advise the president of the Board as to the
proposal. The Superintendent and the Board president shall place on the agenda for a future meeting the
proposed policy or other communications concerning policies for discussion concerning such a policy or
proposed policy. Proposals may be submitted by any resident of the Millard Public School District by
submitting the proposal or proposals, in writing, to the Superintendent.

Policies enacted by the Board are the legislative actions by the Board, which are implemented by the
Superintendent in accordance with professional educational and administrative standards. The policies
shall be implemented by regulations and directives by the office of the Superintendent and other
administrators as directed by the Superintendent.

The Superintendent shall have the responsibility for providing the Board with information as to necessary
policies and changes in existing policies.

Policy Adopted: Millard Public Schools
Revised: December 3, 1990; December 2, 2002,
March 6, 2006 Omaha, NE

33



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM:

MEETING DATE: March 6, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Office of the Superintendent

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Policy 10,000 and Rule 10,000.1

ACTION DESIRED: APPROVAL XX DISCUSSION INFORMATION ONLY ___

BACKGROUND:

A large committee of teachers, administrators, a community representative, and a board representative met to
discuss necessary changes to update Policy 10,000 and related rule 10,000.1. Modifications were made to make
the policy and rule consistent with our current practices. Most of the changes in the policy and rule reflect new
descriptions for the makeup of school improvement teams and site-based planning teams. The policy and rule
still require that major site-based decisions be discussed with school improvement teams. Examples of those
issues include calendars, scheduling, staffing, and Career Compensation Model plans.

STRATEGIC PLAN:

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Angelo Passarelli

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:
(Signature)

BOARD ACTION:

34



Shared Decision-Making 10000

The Board of Education of the Millard Public Schools No. 17, supports the philosophy of shared decision-making as
called for in the District Strategic Plan. Shared decision-making shall support increased student achievement and
improvement in the education process. The philosophy of shared decision-making shall be evident in the Millard
School District through the opportunity for personnel, parents, community members, and students, when
appropriate, to collaborate in the design and implementation of (1) mission statements, (2) objectives, (3) strategies
and action plans, (4) other areas selected from the Scope of Decision Areas, (5 4) evaluation methods, (6 5)
responses to results of evaluation, and (7 6) reporting activities.

While fully supporting these collaborative efforts, the board recognizes its ultimate authority and responsibility for
decisions which impact the direction of education in the Millard Schools.

This policy and related Rule will be reviewed by the Board of Education on an annual basis.

Related Rule 10,000 R1
Policy Adopted: December 7, 1992 Millard Public Schools
Revised: January 13, 1997 Omaha, NE
Reviewed: August 3, 1998; August 23, 1999
Reviewed: February 6, 2006

35



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM:

MEETING DATE: March 6, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Office of the Superintendent

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Policy 10,000 and Rule 10,000.1

ACTION DESIRED: APPROVAL XX DISCUSSION INFORMATION ONLY ___

BACKGROUND:

A large committee of teachers, administrators, a community representative, and a board representative met to
discuss necessary changes to update Policy 10,000 and related rule 10,000.1. Modifications were made to make
the policy and rule consistent with our current practices. Most of the changes in the policy and rule reflect new
descriptions for the makeup of school improvement teams and site-based planning teams. The policy and rule
still require that major site-based decisions be discussed with school improvement teams. Examples of those
issues include calendars, scheduling, staffing, and Career Compensation Model plans.

STRATEGIC PLAN:

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Angelo Passarelli

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:
(Signature)

BOARD ACTION:

36



1

Millard Public Schools Shared Decision Making

Site-Based Planning and Shared Decision-Making 10000.1

Introduction
The Millard Board of Education recognizes that strategic planning, site-based planning, and school improvement
decision-making provide the opportunity for school personnel, parents, community members, and students to
collaborate in the development and success of the school district. This involvement will promote increased school
achievement and improve the educational process.

I. Shared Decision-Making
Millard Public Schools (MPS) uses a blend of centralized and decentralized decision making. The following chart
illustrates decisions that are made at the district and building level and are provided as examples only. All decisions
must be consistent with district policies and regulations, collective bargaining agreements, and state and federal
mandates and laws.

Educational Services
District Building

 Oversee compliance of NDE Rule 10
 Provide and direct system-wide planning for

curriculum instruction, assessment, and staff
development (6005)

 Provide comparable curriculum resources,
instructional resources and assessment resources
(6010)

 Develop and maintain the written curriculum using
Academic Skills & Applications and Life Skills &
Performances (6110), through curriculum phases
(6120, 6610)

 Develop curriculum frameworks and guides (6130)
 Develop and revise Indicators of Effective Teaching

(6200)
 Ensure principals monitor curriculum and evaluate

staff (6201)
 Develop and support the instructional program

(6220), SPED Procedures (6635), ELL, Media
Centers (6625), Summer School (6655), Night
School, Homebound (6670), Choice Programs
(10,001), Federal Programs, Early Childhood
Programs, Alternative Programs, and High Ability
Learner Programs

 Establish accountabilities for guidance in relation to
curriculum issues

 Develop guidelines for controversial issues (6240)
 Provide guidelines and staff development on

copyright procedures (6265)
 Implement textbook loan (6295)
 Assist in the development and implementation of

comprehensive district student assessment system
(6300)

 Develop District Assessment Procedures Manual
(6301)

 Identify credit requirements for graduation (6320)
 Develop grading guidelines (6330) and district

report cards
 Identify, implement, and monitor district staff

development initiative (6400)

 Encourage staff to participate in development of
written curriculum and assessment

 Supervise teachers according to Indicators of
Effective Teaching (6200)

 Monitor taught curriculum according to written
curriculum (6201)

 Monitor lesson plans (6203)
 Administer instructional program and support

programs (6220), including building schedules,
grouping practices, and class size within district
parameters, identify and approve supplemental
materials that align with the written curriculum

 Develop and monitor homework and make up
homework guidelines (6230 & 6235)

 Implement and monitor guidelines for controversial
issues (6240)

 Identify and approve appropriate field trips (6262)
 Enforce and monitor copyright procedures (6265)
 Monitor student production of services and

materials (6270)
 Develop and implement classroom assessments

(6300)
 Implement ELO assessments according to District

Assessment Procedures (6301)
 Identify awards, recognition programs and

graduation exercises (6320), credit for transfer
students, and grade level placement

 Implement grading procedures (6330), including
communicating student progress to parents (6340)

 Ensure staff participation in district staff
development initiatives (6400)

 Oversee building student organizations
 Facilitate building level professional development

DRAFT

37



2

 Identify and apply for appropriate grants to support
district programs and initiatives

PUPIL SERVICES
District Building

 Establish policies for safety and security
 Supervise student record keeping
 Establish student attendance procedures
 Establish policies for student conduct
 Establish accountabilities for guidance in relation to

response services (6628)
 Facilitate health service delivery strategies (6615)
 Supervise option enrollment/intra-district transfer

requests and student placement

 Implement safety procedures, drills, and building
security

 Supervise students
 Maintain student discipline and records related to

student discipline
 Facilitate student referrals to community agencies
 Implement student social activities
 Implement guidance services delivery system
 Decide grade level placement
 Decide credit for transfer students
 Conduct safety procedures, drills and building

security

HUMAN RESOURCES
District Building

 Develop and implement new teacher induction plan
(6440)

 Direct staffing allocation procedures
 Implement building assignments and transfers
 Direct advertising/recruiting/selecting/hiring
 Direct the development of job descriptions
 Support district professional development programs
 Ensure the use of the performance appraisal process
 Direct employee discipline practices
 Monitor policies for safety and security
 Direct employee services
 Direct administrative hiring procedures

 Monitor new teacher induction (6440), identify and
recommend mentors, match peer coaches, and
communication expectations

 Direct intra-school staff assignments and transfers
 Conduct interviews/review recommendations
 Conduct performance appraisal
 Develop staffing recommendations

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION
District Building

 Research, write, administer, and conduct the
financial accounting and reporting related to
district-level (or multi-building level) grants

 Conduct collective bargaining with all employee
unions/associations

 Schedule and administer district-wide contracted
transportation services

 Provide custodial, maintenance, and grounds
services to all facilities in the District

 Conduct all construction and renovation projects in
the District

 Provide food service programs throughout the
District

 Provide intra-district mail delivery services
 Provide district-wide large volume printing services

(including providing one high-volume copier for
each school)

 Provide all budgeting, accounting, and finance
services (including payroll) related to all funds
except the building activity fund

 Research, write, administer, and conduct the
financial accounting and reporting related to
building-level grants (subject to district approval
related to accounting and reporting)

 Schedule and administer building activity
transportation services and conduct student
disciplinary activities related for both building and
district-wide transportation

 Communicate custodial, maintenance, and grounds
needs and deficiencies) to the appropriate supervisor

 Recommend building renovation projects (subject to
review, approval, and supervision by the District)

 Schedule serving times for breakfast and lunch
programs

 Supervise the distribution of mail within the
building

 Provide any small copiers desired by the buildings
and provide all personnel for copying conducted in
the buildings

 Manage all aspects of the building’s activity fund

38



3

(subject to the District’s procedures), manage the
building’s general fund line items, and participate in
the District’s budgeting process

GOVERNANCE
District Building

 Develop and implement the strategic plan
 Develop the academic calendar
 Schedule and approve community use of school

facilities and conduct the related accounting
 Develop and implement policies, procedures and

rules
 Oversee assessment of student achievement
 Develop yearly and long-range budgets
 Determine emergency closing procedures

 Develop and implement the school site plan
 Develop the school activities calendar including

parent/teacher conference schedules
 Develop and implement school procedures and rules
 Develop the school schedule
 Oversee assessment schedules, retakes, security and

remediation
 Allocate the budget
 Schedule and approve school activity use of school

facilities

TECHNOLOGY
District Building

 Provide network operations (7000)
 Provide email (4157.1)
 Establish hardware and software standards
 Provide Helpdesk & desktop support
 Facilitate donations approval
 Provide platform decisions
 Establish web page guidelines (7305)
 Develop technology standards for students and staff
 Provide Internet filtering (7310)
 Evaluate curriculum software (7000)

 Provide for integrating technology into instruction
 Provide technology staff development
 Develop and maintain building web pages
 Budget for hardware purchases with approval
 Budget for curriculum software with approval
 Assign technology initiator
 Develop building technology action plans

II. District Strategic Planning Team
The Superintendent or designee will appoint a team consisting of administrators, teachers, board members, and
community members to serve as the District strategic planning team. The strategic planning team will

 Review the existing plan and initiate changes.
 Rewrite the plan to address critical issues.
 Recommend an implementation schedule for action plans.
 Determine which plans are operational.

III. Site-Based Planning Team
Each school in the Millard Public School District shall have a site-based planning team that meets every other year
to write or update the school site plan as needed. The team will be responsible for long-range site planning
including the development of the school mission, objectives, and strategies. The team will also approve action plans
and make a recommendation for implementation of action plans. Each principal’s supervisor will assist the principal
and team in the development of the site plan, the implementation of strategies, the collection and analysis of data to
evaluate action plans, the relationship of the site-plan to the District’s plan, and compliance with district policies.
The team will also meet as needed to comply with the NCA process of school improvement. The team will follow
the district guidelines and established process for site planning and include administrators, teachers, staff, parents,
and/or community members. High schools and middle schools may choose to involve students. Staff members on
the team are volunteers and will serve at will. The team will be approved by the Superintendent or designee.

IV. School Improvement Team (SIT)
Each school in the Millard Public School District shall have a School Improvement Team that meets once each
quarter (minimum). The SIT will monitor progress on the school site plan and make recommendations on pertinent
issues including calendar, schedules, CCM I & II, re-teaching plans, and staffing. It may be necessary for ad hoc
teams to form and meet to develop programs or further develop action plans for implementation. The ad hoc team
will then report to the SIT for consideration. The SIT will also meet as needed to comply with the NCA process of
school improvement. The SIT will include administrators, teachers, staff, parents, and/or community members.

39



4

High school and middle schools may choose to involve students. Each site will develop a process to ensure genuine
participation and develop the rules for determining who will serve on these teams including the term of office.
Meetings will be open to all. Agendas, attendees and minutes of the meetings will be communicated and made
available. In most cases the SIT members will also serve on the site-based planning team. Staff members on the
team are volunteers and will serve at will. The SIT members will be approved by the Superintendent or designee.
A report on activities of the SIT will be completed by June 1st each year and copies will be sent to the staff, building
supervisor and the Director of Administrative Affairs.

Consensus Method for School Improvement Teams
Strategic Planning Teams, Site-based Planning Teams and School Improvement Teams will seek consensus in an
affirming environment marked by mutual support and respect. Consensus exists when participants whose support is
needed to implement a decision, agree with the decision and express a commitment to support its implementation. If
consensus cannot be achieved on a specific issue the administrator may make the necessary interim decisions as they
continue to work for sufficient consensus.

Appeals
In the event the SIT is unable to function effectively the principal (or any three team members) shall report the
situation to the building supervisor. The building supervisor will attempt to resolve the situation. In the event the
situation is not resolved a written report shall be presented to the Superintendent. If the issues cannot be resolved,
by the Superintendent, the dispute shall be submitted in writing to the Board of Education through the
Superintendent.

Rule Adopted: December 7, 1992 Millard Public Schools
Revised: January 3, 1994; December 19, 1994; January 13, 1997; Omaha, NE

August 3, 1998; August 23, 1999; June 19, 2000, February 2006

40



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
Agenda Item: Approval of Rule 4511.1 Voluntary Separation 
 
Meeting Date: March 6, 2006 
 
Department: Human Resources 
 
 
Title & Brief Description: The District and the Millard Education Association have agreed to amend the 2005-07 

agreement.  The only sections amended were:  Article III Terms and Conditions, Paragraph 7 Voluntary Early 
Separation Program and Appendix E Schedule of Payments. 

 
 The parties met on February 7.  Informational sessions were conducted for the members on February 10, 13, 14, and 

15.  Balloting was conducted on February 16.  The MEA and the Board have each voted to approve the contract 
amendment.  The amendment provides: 

 
 
1) Eligibility for the plan is modified.   20 years of service at an age less than 55 is being eliminated. 
2) The table of benefits is modified by replacing “Age” with “Year of Plan Eligibility.” 
3) An employee’s age is his or her age on June 1 instead of his or her last day of work. 
4) Plan payments will be made as post-employment employer contributions to a 403(b).  These payments are 

not subject to social security taxes.  The district and the retiree will each have a tax savings. 
5) Payments will continue to be made over the same number of monthly payments with payments exceeding 

60 months being converted to 60 payments.  Post-employment 403(b) employer contributions can only be 
made within five years of separating from service. 

 
The amendment to the contract necessitates the revision of the related Board Rule 4511.1 
 

 
Action Desired: Approval of Rule 4511.1 
 
  
Background:  
 
Options And Alternatives:  
 
Responsible Person: Steve Moore 
 
Superintendent's Approval: ______________________________ 
 

41



Personnel  
Voluntary Early Separation Program 4511.1 
 

The District may offer a Voluntary Early Separation Program (hereinafter "Program”) for 
certificated employees and non-certificated administrative employees.  Upon written application 
and approval of the Superintendent of Schools and the Board, eligible employees may participate in 
the Voluntary Early Separation Program.  The Program may be reviewed annually for possible 
modification.  Modification shall not affect employees previously participating in the Program. 

 
Purpose of the Program 

The major purpose of the Program is to encourage eligible employees who are considering 
early separation or early retirement to accelerate their plans.  Program objectives include but are not 
limited to the following: 
1. To offer financial incentives, which will assist long-term Millard Public School employees 

considering early separation or early retirement decisions, by providing a financial "bridge" 
to Social Security and Nebraska School Employees retirement benefits.

2. To reduce District costs by replacing maximum salary employees with lesser salary 
employees. 

3. To provide a better balance of employee experience. 
4. To reduce or eliminate the possibility of certificated employee layoffs. 
5. To provide the District the opportunity to select and retain the highest quality staff by 

establishing February 15 as the application deadline. 
 
Program Eligibility Requirements and Provisions 
1. The employee must be at least age fifty-five (55) and have not yet attained sixty-five (65) 

years of age as of the separation date; and, 
 The employee must have ten (10) or more years of credited service in the Millard Public 

Schools as a certificated employee or non-certificated administrator; provided, however,
2. Prior to age fifty-five (55), an employee who has twenty (20) or more years of credited 

service in the Millard Public Schools as a certificated employee or non-certificated 
administrator may participate in the Program. 

 
Definitions, Conditions and Limitations 
1. Acceptance of an employee’s application for Voluntary Early Separation Program will be 

considered a voluntary resignation and termination of the employee’s continuing contract.  
Employees participating in the program cannot return to full-time or part-time regular 
employment in the District at a later date.  The District may consider Ttemporary (“on-call”) 
substitute employment and/or consultant service may be considered by the District. 

2. Any eligible employee electing to participate in the Program shall be required to complete 
the school year before retirement commences, unless this requirement is waived by the 
Board. 

3. Employees receiving long-term disability benefits are not eligible to participate in this 
program. 

4. An employee is not eligible to participate in the program if his or her employment is 
terminated by the District. 

5. An employee shall not be eligible for benefits under this program if the employee has been 
on a total of more than a one (1) year leave of absence within the five (5) most recent years 
of employment prior to voluntary early separation. 

 
Definitions: 

42



61. Years of credited service shall mean: 
a. Any school year in which an employee is paid by the district for at least 135 days of full-

time work as a certificated employee or non-certificated administrator; or, 
b. Any two (2) school years in which the employee is paid for the equivalent of at least 135 

days of part-time work each year as a certificated employee or non-certificated 
administrator; or,  

c. Any two (2) school years in which the employee is paid for the equivalent of at least 
67.5 days of full-time work each year as a certificated employee or non-certificated 
administrator. 

d. Years of employment as a substitute shall not be counted toward years of service under 
this plan. 

72. Age shall mean an employee’s age on June 1 of any given school-year.the age of a qualified 
employee on the employee's last day of work for the district. 

83. Salary shall mean the employee's final school-year annual base salary from the schedule 
salary, including longevity pay but not including payments for extra-duty, performance 
bonus, cash-option or hourly paid work. 

94. Monthly benefit amount shall mean the total benefit divided by the number of monthly 
payments prescribed in the benefit table.  Year of Plan Eligibility is determined by the 
school year when the employee is first eligible to participate.   When an employee first 
meets the qualifications described in the eligibility section above, the employee is in his or 
her 1st year of eligibility.  The following school-year is the employee’s 2nd year of eligibility; 
this pattern continues until the employee elects to participate or until the 11th year when the 
employee is no longer eligible to participate. 

10. Eligible employees with the equivalent of twenty (20) or more years of full-time service 
electing to participate in the plan prior to age fifty-five (55) shall receive benefits at the age 
fifty-five (55) rate prescribed in the benefit table. 

 
Application Process 

1. Eligible employees desiring to take advantage of the Program may do so by submitting a 
written request to the Personnel Office Human Resources.  The written request must be 
submitted by February 15 of the elected year of separation on a form provided by Human 
Resources.  The request shall set forth that the employee resigns his or her position, effective 
at the end of the school-year, upon tender, provided, however, and subject to the acceptance 
and approval of the employee’s request by the Superintendent and the Board. 

2. The Human Resource Department shall review the employee’s record to determine 
eligibility for the Program and make a recommendation to the Superintendent and the Board 
regarding the request.  The Board shall act upon the request by April 15.  The action of the 
Board of Education shall be final, and any employee electing to participate in the Program 
relinquishes all employment rights in the District. 

 
Benefit Table 
An eligible employee who has been approved by the Board for participation in the Program shall 
receive a total benefits upon the following schedule: equal to his or her final salary times years of 
credited service times the salary factor indicated in the table below.  The total benefit shall be 
divided into equal monthly payments as indicated in the table below. 
 
 Age Total Benefit Formula Number of Monthly Payments
 55 Salary  x  Years  x  0.070  120 
 56 Salary  x  Years  x  0.065 108 
 57 Salary  x  Years  x  0.060 96 

43



 58 Salary  x  Years  x  0.055 84 
 59 Salary  x  Years  x  0.050 72 
 60 Salary  x  Years  x  0.045 60 
 61 Salary  x  Years  x  0.040 48 
 62 Salary  x  Years  x  0.035 36 
 63 Salary  x  Years  x  0.025 24 
 64 Salary  x  Years  x  0.015 12
 

 
Year of Plan Eligibility

 
Total Benefit Formula

Number of Equal 
Monthly 
Payments

1 Salary x Years x .070 60
2 Salary x Years x .065 60
3 Salary x Years x .060 60
4 Salary x Years x .055 60
5 Salary x Years x .050 60
6 Salary x Years x .045 60
7 Salary x Years x .040 48
8 Salary x Years x .035 36
9 Salary x Years x .025 24
10 Salary x Years x .015 12
11 Eligibility Ends  

 
 
Payment of Benefits 
1. Following separation, Program payments will be made once each month a payment is due.  

The participant must elect whether payments will begin in the month October or January, 
following the date of separation.  The election must be designated prior to the employee's 
separation, and is irrevocable.  Monthly payments will begin in August following the date of 
separation.  Payments shall be made through a Post Retirement 403(b) plan as established by 
the District. 

2. If the employee dies after the Board of Education has approved the employees application to 
participate in the Voluntary Separation Program and before all payments have been made, 
the beneficiary shall receive the remaining payments as established.  The District reserves 
the right to accelerate the remaining payments to a beneficiary in the form of a single lump 
sum payment. 

3. The District shall withhold from any amount payable or to be paid under this Program all 
federal, state or other taxes as shall be required pursuant to any law or government 
regulation or ruling, and any other amounts required by law or court order. 

 
Health, Dental and Life Insurance 
Following separation, Program participants may be eligible to continue their health, dental and life 
insurance coverage; provided, however, the employee pays the premiums and follows the rules set 
forth by the underwriter and complies with the provisions of COBRA or other applicable law. 
 
 
Rule Approved:  September 6, 1983 Millard Public Schools 
Revised:  11/17/1986; 9/20/1993; 6/15/1998; 10/20/2003 Omaha, Nebraska 
 3/6/2006
 

44



Personnel  
Voluntary Separation Program 4511.1 
 

The District may offer a Voluntary Separation Program (hereinafter "Program”) for 
certificated employees and non-certificated administrative employees.  Upon written application 
and approval of the Superintendent of Schools and the Board, eligible employees may participate in 
the Program.  The Program may be reviewed annually for possible modification.  Modification shall 
not affect employees previously participating in the Program. 

 
Purpose of the Program 

The major purpose of the Program is to encourage eligible employees who are considering 
separation or retirement to accelerate their plans.  Program objectives include but are not limited to 
the following: 
1. To offer financial incentives, which will assist long-term Millard Public School employees 

considering separation or retirement. 
2. To reduce District costs by replacing maximum salary employees with lesser salary 

employees. 
3. To provide a better balance of employee experience. 
4. To reduce or eliminate the possibility of certificated employee layoffs. 
5. To provide the District the opportunity to select and retain the highest quality staff by 

establishing February 15 as the application deadline. 
 
Program Eligibility Requirements and Provisions 
1. The employee must be at least age fifty-five (55); and, 
2. The employee must have ten (10) or more years of credited service in the Millard Public 

Schools as a certificated employee or non-certificated administrator. 
 
Conditions and Limitations 
1. Acceptance of an employee’s application for Voluntary Separation Program will be 

considered a voluntary resignation and termination of the employee’s continuing contract.  
Employees participating in the program cannot return to full-time or part-time regular 
employment in the District at a later date.  The District may consider temporary (“on-call”) 
substitute employment and/or consultant service. 

2. Any eligible employee electing to participate in the Program shall be required to complete 
the school year before retirement commences, unless this requirement is waived by the 
Board. 

3. Employees receiving long-term disability benefits are not eligible to participate in this 
program. 

4. An employee is not eligible to participate in the program if his or her employment is 
terminated by the District. 

5. An employee shall not be eligible for benefits under this program if the employee has been 
on a total of more than a one (1) year leave of absence within the five (5) most recent years 
of employment prior to voluntary separation. 

 
Definitions: 
1. Years of credited service shall mean: 

a. Any school year in which an employee is paid by the district for at least 135 days of full-
time work as a certificated employee or non-certificated administrator; or, 

45



b. Any two (2) school years in which the employee is paid for the equivalent of at least 135 
days of part-time work each year as a certificated employee or non-certificated 
administrator; or,  

c. Any two (2) school years in which the employee is paid for the equivalent of at least 
67.5 days of full-time work each year as a certificated employee or non-certificated 
administrator. 

d. Years of employment as a substitute shall not be counted toward years of service under 
this plan. 

2. Age shall mean an employee’s age on June 1 of any given school-year. 
3. Salary shall mean the employee's final school-year annual salary, including longevity pay 

but not including payments for extra-duty, performance bonus, cash-option or hourly paid 
work. 

4. Year of Plan Eligibility is determined by the school year when the employee is first eligible 
to participate.   When an employee first meets the qualifications described in the eligibility 
section above, the employee is in his or her 1  year of eligibility.  The following school-year 
is the employee’s 2  year of eligibility; this pattern continues until the employee elects to 
participate or until the 11  year when the employee is no longer eligible to participate. 

st

nd

th

 
Application Process 
1. Eligible employees desiring to take advantage of the Program may do so by submitting a 

written request to Human Resources.  The written request must be submitted by February 15 
of the elected year of separation on a form provided by Human Resources.  The request shall 
set forth that the employee resigns his or her position, effective at the end of the school-year, 
upon tender, provided, however, and subject to the acceptance and approval of the 
employee’s request by the Superintendent and the Board. 

2. The Human Resource Department shall review the employee’s record to determine 
eligibility for the Program and make a recommendation to the Superintendent and the Board 
regarding the request.  The Board shall act upon the request by April 15.  The action of the 
Board of Education shall be final, and any employee electing to participate in the Program 
relinquishes all employment rights in the District. 

 
Benefit Table 
An eligible employee who has been approved by the Board for participation in the Program shall 
receive a total benefit equal to his or her final salary times years of credited service times the salary 
factor indicated in the table below.  The total benefit shall be divided into equal monthly payments 
as indicated in the table below. 
 

 
Year of Plan Eligibility

 
Total Benefit Formula

Number of Equal 
Monthly Payments

1 Salary x Years x .070 60
2 Salary x Years x .065 60
3 Salary x Years x .060 60
4 Salary x Years x .055 60
5 Salary x Years x .050 60
6 Salary x Years x .045 60
7 Salary x Years x .040 48
8 Salary x Years x .035 36
9 Salary x Years x .025 24
10 Salary x Years x .015 12
11 Eligibility Ends  

46



 
 
Payment of Benefits 
1. Monthly payments will begin in August following the date of separation.  Payments shall be 

made through a Post Retirement 403(b) plan as established by the District. 
2. If the employee dies after the Board of Education has approved the employees application to 

participate in the Voluntary Separation Program and before all payments have been made, 
the beneficiary shall receive the remaining payments as established.  The District reserves 
the right to accelerate the remaining payments to a beneficiary in the form of a single lump 
sum payment. 

3. The District shall withhold from any amount payable or to be paid under this Program all 
federal, state or other taxes as shall be required pursuant to any law or government 
regulation or ruling, and any other amounts required by law or court order. 

 
Health, Dental and Life Insurance 
Following separation, Program participants may be eligible to continue their health, dental and life 
insurance coverage; provided, however, the employee pays the premiums and follows the rules set 
forth by the underwriter and complies with the provisions of COBRA or other applicable law. 
 
 
Rule Approved:  September 6, 1983 Millard Public Schools 
Revised:  11/17/1986; 9/20/1993; 6/15/1998; 10/20/2003 Omaha, Nebraska 

3/6/2006 

47



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Rule 5110.1

MEETING DATE: March 6, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Pupil Services

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Within District Transfers

ACTION DESIRED: X Approval ___ informational

BACKGROUND: Parents of students often request a “transfer”
to “open” schools within the district. At
times, Option Enrollment students (students
from other school districts) are accepted
before patrons who live within the MPS
boundaries. The updated rule would help
ensure MPS patrons receive first priority
regarding school placement to the greatest
extent possible.

OPTIONAL/ALTERNATIVE
CONSIDERATIONS: N/A

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approval

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION
OR REJECTION: First choice regarding placement at “open”

schools to the greatest extent possible.

TIMELINE: Immediately

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE: Kraig J. Lofquist, Director of Pupil Services

ASST. SUPERINTENDENT: ________________________________

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: _________________________________

48



Pupil Services
Transfer of Students Within the District 5110.1

I. Determination of Unavailability. The Superintendent or designee will determine which classes, grades,
programs, or schools are to be considered unavailable for student transfers within the District after
considering the following:

A. Available capacity (i.e., space for efficient and effective instruction based on total student
enrollment).

B. The relative positive or negative impact that a transfers would have on a the class, grade, program,
or student’s assigned school. or the requested school, or on the classes, grades, or programs of
either school.

C. Prior and anticipated future enrollment levels and at the student’s assigned school.

D. Anticipated future growth of the class, grade, program, or school requested.

The Board will be informed annually of any classes, grades, programs, or schools that are closed to
transfers.

II. Procedural Steps to Request Transfer Within the District. The following are the steps to be followed when
students desire a transfer within the District.

A. A Transfer Request form should be obtained, completed, and returned to the building principal
(the forms are available in the building principal's office).

B. Parents should discuss the reasons for the transfer request with the principal of their assigned
school; the discussion may be in person or on the phone depending on the desire of the principal.
After the discussion, the principal will forward the Transfer Request to the office of the Director
of Pupil Services. The Director of Pupil Services will serve as the Superintendent’s designee and
will determine whether the transfer request will be granted or denied.

C. When deciding upon transfer requests, the Director of Pupil Services will consider the following
factors:

1. The reasons for the request and the principal's recommendations resulting from the
conference held with the parents.

2. The number of students enrolled in the building to which the student wishes to transfer,
the number of students enrolled in the student’s assigned school, and whether the transfer
adversely affects pre-established class size, grade size, and/or total building enrollment.

3. The time of year the transfer request is made.

4. If the student is in a special education program, the recommendation of the Director of
Special Education may be based upon the student’s individualized education program and
educational needs; class size; related service needs; transportation arrangements as may
be required by law; the allocation of specially trained staff and personnel; facility issues;
and the allocation of equipment or materials necessary to provide an appropriate
education program.

49



5. Personnel and staffing requirements, curriculum, and facility issues affecting the building
to which the student wishes to transfer.

6. The student’s educational program including but not limited to course credits and
graduation requirements.

7. The interests of the individual student based on the preceding factors.

8. The number of transfers that a student has been granted during a school year. Unless
special safety, health, or program issues are involved no student will be granted more
than one transfer per school year.

9. Students will not be allowed to transfer to another school during suspension or expulsion.
A student’s disciplinary record will be considered and students with extensive
disciplinary records will not be considered for transfer unless it is determined to be in the
safety interests of the student or the school. The transfer policy will not apply to or alter
a student’s mandatory reassignment.

10. As a general rule, student transfers within the District shall be considered before
applications for option enrollments when determining placements in programs, classes,
grade levels, or school buildings,

D. After considering the above-mentioned factors, the Director of Pupil Services will make a decision
and will notify the parents and the principals of the buildings involved. Parents will be notified in
writing.

E. A decision regarding a transfer request made during a school year for the following school year
may be made at any time, but the District will not be obligated to make the decision until after the
District's new student registration.

III. Conditions for Transfer. The following conditions apply to all transfers within the District:

A. Students of parents who move from one school's attendance area to that of another within the
District during the school year may continue attending the original school if the parents apply for a
transfer even though the original school is closed to transfers for students who have not been
attending that school.

B. Once a student is transferred to a particular school, the parents need not re-apply unless they want
the student to transfer back to the student's home school or to another school at the same level
(elementary school, middle school, or high school) in the District. Parents must re-apply if they
want their student to attend a school other than the home school at the next higher level (middle
school or high school).

C. Once a transfer is approved, every effort will be made to make the transfer permanent; however,
the District reserves the right to reassign transferred students back to their home school in order to
maintain enrollment limits on an annual basis; and/or based on any of the factors set forth in
Section II (C) above.

D. Transfer requests for siblings of student already transferred will not be automatically approved.
Siblings of students who have transferred must follow the steps for requesting a transfer set forth
in Section II (C) above.

E. Transportation for students who transfer within the District must be provided by the student's
parents or legal guardian unless as otherwise required by law.

IV. Extenuating Circumstances. The Superintendent may in his/her discretion allow students to transfer to

50



closed schools when extenuating circumstances warrant.

V. Definitions.

A. " Assigned school" shall mean the District school in which the student is enrolled/assigned prior to
making the transfer request.

Rule Approved: October 5, 1992
Revised: January 8, 1996; March 17, 1997; February 16, 1998; March 6, 2006 Millard Public Schools
September 11, 2000; March 3, 2003 Omaha, NE

51



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Policies and Rules for Reaffirmation

MEETING DATE: March 6, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Educational Services

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:
Policy 6031: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – School Day for Students
Policy 6040: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Ceremonies and Observances
Policy 6041: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Holiday Observances-Laws and

Requirements
Policy 6610: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Multi-Cultural Education
Policy 6635: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Students With Disabilities

Rule 6020.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – School Calendar
Rule 6031.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – School Day for Students
Rule 6040.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Ceremonies and Observances
Rule 6610.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Multi-Cultural Education

ACTION DESIRED: APPROVAL X DISCUSSION INFORMATION ONLY

BACKGROUND: All listed Policies and Rules only have changes to Legal References and
therefore require reaffirmation.

OPTIONS AND ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: Leave the policy unchanged.

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve the changes as recommended.

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION: Review and revision of these policies
and rules meets the need for a periodic review of all policies by the Board of Education.

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S): Martha Bruckner

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:

BOARD ACTION:

52



6031 Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

School Day for Students

The school day shall be established by the Superintendent, with approval of the Board, in such a way
that students are given the best opportunity for their educational growth and development.

All students of the District will be required to be in attendance during instructional time as required
by the laws of the State of Nebraska, unless excused in accordance with state law or District
attendance policies.

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-101, 92 NAC 10
Title 92, Nebraska Administrative Code, Chapter 10

Related Policies and Rules: 6031r1, 5550p

Policy Approved: April 20, 1981 Millard Public Schools
Revised: March 16, 1998; October 16, 2000, March 6, 2006 Omaha, NE

53



6040 Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Ceremonies and Observances

The flags of the United States of America and the State of Nebraska shall be prominently displayed
on the school grounds of every school on each day that such school is in session. All flag displays
shall be in accordance with the standards prescribed for the display of the flag of the United States of
America.

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. 79-707, 36 U.S.C. 173 et seq.
Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-707, 79-708, 4 U.S.C. § 6

Related Rules: 6040R1

Policy Adopted: June 16, 1975 Millard Public Schools
Revised: March 16, 1998, April 19, 1999, March 6, 2006 Omaha, NE

54



6041 Curriculum, Instruction and Assessment

Holiday Observances—Laws and Requirements

The Millard Public School District shall observe holidays designated by the law and as required in
observance of American citizenship and patriotic exercises.

Legal Ref: Neb. Rev. Stat. § 84-104, 79-724, 62-301 et seq.

Policy Adopted: April 19, 1999 Millard Public Schools
Revised: March 6, 2006 Omaha, NE

55



6610 Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Multi-Cultural Education

The Millard Public Schools shall provide those programs which foster and develop an appreciation
and understanding of the racial, ethnic, language and cultural heritage of all groups which comprise
the population of the United States of America.

The programs shall be implemented within the guidelines provided by the State Department of
Education and in accordance with any other applicable laws or regulations.

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-703, 79-719, 79-720, 79-721 79-719 to 79-723

Related Rules: 6610R1

Policy Adopted: Millard Public Schools
Revised: November 2, 1992; April 27, 1998; July 26, 1999, March 6, 2006 Omaha, NE

56



6635 Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Students With Disabilities

All students with verified disabilities will be provided with a free appropriate public education,
which includes special education and related services, in conformity with individualized education
programs.

Under the direction of the Superintendent, the administration shall establish and maintain procedures
governing the provision of special education and related services to students with disabilities in
compliance with the Individuals With Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), requirements of the
Nebraska State Department of Education and all other applicable laws and regulations, as amended
from time to time.

Legal References: 20 U.S.C.Section 1401 et seq.
Neb. Rev. State. Section 79-3301 et seq
Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-1110 et seq.
92NAC51, 92NAC55
34 C.F.R. Section 300.1 et seq.

Policy Adopted: Millard Public Schools
Revised: October 20, 1997; November 10, 1997; August 9, 1999 Omaha, NE

March 6, 2006

57



6020.1 Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

School Calendar

A school calendar for the Millard Public Schools as approved and adopted by the Board of Education
will comply with the laws of the State of Nebraska and regulations of the State Department of
Education.

A two-year school calendar will be approved by the Board of Education at or before its first meeting
in February of each year.

The calendar shall provide time for orientation and inservice for staff members.

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. 79-101(7), 79-101, 79-201, et seq., 92 NAC 5
Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-101, 79-201, et seq., 92 NAC 10

Related Policy: 6020P

Rule Approved: Millard Public Schools
Revised: November 2, 1992; November 6, 1995; March 2, 1998;

April 19, 1999, March 6, 2006 Omaha, NE

58



6031.1 Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

School Day for Students

In designing the school day, the following considerations are to be met:

I. A. The learning activities are to be carefully guided and supervised.

II. B. Opportunities shall be provided so as to receive assistance from teachers outside of the
regular school day.

III. C. Instructional hour means a period of time, at least sixty (60) minutes, which is actually
used for the instruction of students.

IV. D. The instructional hours per full school day will be six (6) hours in the elementary
schools and six and one half (6½) hours in the secondary schools. An alteration of the
school day shall be subject to the approval of the office of the Superintendent.

V. E. Parents of students and the general public shall be informed of the reasons for the
variations which may exist in the times designated for the beginning and ending of the
school day.

VI. F. High school students shall take a minimum of four (4) classes (two in block) each
semester.

VII. G. Early dismissal to facilitate student employment shall be limited to course-related work
study and /or internship programs. Exceptions due to hardship may be granted by the
building principal or their designee.

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-101

Related Policies and Rules: 6031p, 5550r1

Rule Approved: June 16, 1975 Millard Public Schools
Revised: March 16, 1998; April 24, 2000; October 16, 2000, March 6, 2006 Omaha, NE

59



6040.1 Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

School Calendar Ceremonies and Observances

The Superintendent or Superintendent’s designee at each building in the district shall be responsible
for the care and display of the Flag and shall adhere to rules and customs pertaining to the use and
display as set forth in the United States Code.

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-707, 79-708, 4 U.S.C. § 1 et seq.

Related Policy: 6040P

Rule Approved: June 16, 1975 Millard Public Schools
Revised: March 16, 1998; April 19, 1999, March 6, 2006 Omaha, NE

60



6610.1 Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Multi-Cultural Education

Implementation of the district Multi-Cultural Education Policy shall utilize:

I. Curriculum, including the selection of materials that will assist in avoiding bias and
stereotyping;

II. Instruction, including those instructional strategies which will assist staff in providing
equitable and unbiased opportunities for students;

III. Inservice, including those learning opportunities for staff which will better enable them to
understand a multi-cultural approach and employ it in their teaching and administrative
duties;

IV. Guidance and counseling services which promote understanding and appreciation of the
racial, ethnic, language and cultural background of others.

All organizational arrangements shall guard against any grouping of students which fosters or
promotes racial, ethnic, language or cultural bias.

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-703, 79-719, 79-720, 79-721 79-719 to 79-723

Related Policy: 6610P

Rule Approved: Millard Public Schools
Revised: November 2, 1992; April 27, 1998; July 26, 1999, March 6, 2006 Omaha, NE

61



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Beadle Middle School Design Development

MEETING DATE: March 6, 2006

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: BMS Design Development – The approval of the design development stage of the

project to add onto Beadle Middle School.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval x Discussion Information Only .

BACKGROUND: One of the 2005 bond issue projects was the addition of classroom space at Beadle
Middle School. These additions were anticipated in the original design.

Attached is information related to the design of the additions. The architects will
be present to present the information and to answer questions.

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the design development plans for the additions to Beadle
Middle School be approved as submitted.

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: Immediate.

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

62



63



64



65



66



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Neihardt Elementary Floor Covering Contract

MEETING DATE: March 6, 2006

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Neihardt Elementary Floor Covering Contract – The contract for the summer

project to replacement of the carpet in Neihardt Elementary School.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval x Discussion Information Only .

BACKGROUND: This is one of the summer projects reported to the board earlier this year. Seven
bids were received (see attached bid tab).

Alternate #1 provides for an upgrade to a vinyl backed carpet. It is the opinion of
the administration that the upgrade should be accepted in light of the bid price.

The low base bid plus the alternate are within the estimated budget for the project.

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the contract for the Neihardt floor covering replacement
project be awarded to Commercial Flooring in the amount of $100,387 (with such
amount including the base bid and Alternate #1) and that the Associate
Superintendent for General Administration be authorized and directed to execute
any and all documents related to such project.

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: Immediate. Project to be completed this summer.

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

67



68



NORTH AMERICAN
FLOORING GALASKA

CONTINENTAL
FLOORING FLOORS, INC.

MIDWEST
FLOORING

THE FLOOR
PLAN, INC.

COMMERICAL
FLOORING

Lump Sum Base Bid $110,614.00 $103,922.00 $112,100.00 $104,367.00 $104,761.00 $91,750.00 $86,721.00

Addenda (None) NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

Bid Security Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Alternates

Alternate Bid No. 1 $21,563.00 $22,918.00 $29,700.00 $16,165.00 $33,300.00 $25,250.00 $13,666.00

Voluntary Substitutions No No No No No No No

Alternates

February 22, 2006

1. If this Alternate Bid is accepted, the Lump Sum Base Bid shall be modified as follows for providing vinyl backed carpet

Beringer Ciaccio Dennell Mabrey

NEIHARDT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
FLOORING REPLACEMENT CONTRACT

10 15 North 98th Street, Suite 300
Omaha, NE 68114-2334

in lieu of broadloom carpet as specified in Section 09680.

BID TABULATION

BCDM PROJECT NO. 4367-00

Page 1

69



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Willowdale Elementary Floor Covering Contract

MEETING DATE: March 6, 2006

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Willowdale Elementary Floor Covering Contract – The contract for the summer

project to replacement of the carpet in Willowdale Elementary School.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval x Discussion Information Only .

BACKGROUND: This is one of the summer projects reported to the board earlier this year. Seven
bids were received (see attached bid tab).

Alternate #1 provides for an upgrade to a vinyl backed carpet. It is the opinion of
the administration that the upgrade should be accepted in light of the bid price.

The low base bid plus the alternate are within the estimated budget for the project.

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the contract for the Willowdale floor covering replacement
project be awarded to Floor Plan, Inc. in the amount of $83,686 (with such amount
including the base bid and Alternate #1) and that the Associate Superintendent for
General Administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all
documents related to such project.

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: Immediate. Project to be completed this summer.

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

70



71



NORTH AMERICAN
FLOORING GALASKA

CONTINENTAL
FLOORING FLOORS, INC.

MIDWEST
FLOORING

THE FLOOR
PLAN, INC.

COMMERICAL
FLOORING

Lump Sum Base Bid $85,474.00 $75,894.00 $88,500.00 $71,458.00 $75,856.00 $68,600.00 $73,474.00

Addenda (None) NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

Bid Security Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Alternates

Alternate Bid No. 1 $21,726.00 $18,988.00 $22,300.00 $12,228.00 $22,970.00 $18,900.00 $13,400.00

Voluntary Substitutions No No No No No No No

Alternates

February 22, 2006

1. If this Alternate Bid is accepted, the Lump Sum Base Bid shall be modified as follows for providing vinyl backed carpet

Beringer Ciaccio Dennell Mabrey

WILLOWDALE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
FLOORING REPLACEMENT CONTRACT

10 15 North 98th Street, Suite 300
Omaha, NE 68114-2334

in lieu of broadloom carpet as specified in Section 09680.

BID TABULATION

BCDM PROJECT NO. 4367-00

Page 1

72



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Ezra Elementary Floor Covering Contract

MEETING DATE: March 6, 2006

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Ezra Elementary Floor Covering Contract – The contract for the summer project to

replacement of the carpet in Ezra Elementary School.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval x Discussion Information Only .

BACKGROUND: This is one of the summer projects reported to the board earlier this year. Seven
bids were received (see attached bid tab).

Alternate #1 provides for an upgrade to a vinyl backed carpet. It is the opinion of
the administration that the upgrade should be accepted in light of the bid price.

The low base bid plus the alternate are within the estimated budget for the project.

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the contract for the Ezra floor covering replacement project
be awarded to Commercial Flooring in the amount of $78,313 (with such amount
including the base bid and Alternate #1) and that the Associate Superintendent for
General Administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all
documents related to such project.

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: Immediate. Project to be completed this summer.

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

73



74



NORTH AMERICAN
FLOORING GALASKA

CONTINENTAL
FLOORING FLOORS, INC.

MIDWEST
FLOORING

THE FLOOR
PLAN, INC.

COMMERICAL
FLOORING

Lump Sum Base Bid $83,821.93 $71,962.00 $91,800.00 $76,931.00 $75,541.00 $69,650.00 $69,313.00

Addenda (None) NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

Bid Security Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Alternates

Alternate Bid No. 1 $14,375.00 $18,031.00 $21,100.00 $12,390.00 $22,530.00 $17,900.00 $9,000.00

Voluntary Substitutions No No No No No No No

Alternates

in lieu of broadloom carpet as specified in Section 09680.

BID TABULATION

BCDM PROJECT NO. 4367-00

February 22, 2006

1. If this Alternate Bid is accepted, the Lump Sum Base Bid shall be modified as follows for providing vinyl backed carpet

Beringer Ciaccio Dennell Mabrey

EZRA MILLARD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
FLOORING REPLACEMENT CONTRACT

10 15 North 98th Street, Suite 300
Omaha, NE 68114-2334

Page 1

75



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Kiewit Middle School Floor Covering Contract

MEETING DATE: March 6, 2006

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Kiewit Middle School Floor Covering Contract – The contract for the summer

project to replacement of the carpet in Kiewit Middle School.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval x Discussion Information Only .

BACKGROUND: This is one of the summer projects reported to the board earlier this year. Seven
bids were received (see attached bid tab).

Alternates #1, #2, and #3 are for products from other manufacturers. Alternate #4
provides for an upgrade to a vinyl backed carpet. It is the opinion of the
administration that only Alternate #4 (the upgrade to vinyl backing) should be
accepted in light of the bid price.

The low base bid (after the withdrawal of the low bid due to errors) with Alternate
#4 added is within the estimated budget for the project.

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the contract for the Kiewit Middle School floor covering
replacement project be awarded to Midwest Flooring in the amount of $90,700
(with such amount including the base bid and Alternate #4) and that the Associate
Superintendent for General Administration be authorized and directed to execute
any and all documents related to such project.

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: Immediate. Project to be completed this summer.

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

76



77



NORTH AMERICAN
FLOORING GALASKA

CONTINENTAL
FLOORING FLOORS, INC.

MIDWEST
FLOORING

THE FLOOR
PLAN, INC.

Lump Sum Base Bid $57,319.00 $131,200.00 $109,162 $80,400.00 $82,200.00

Addenda (1) Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Bid Security Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Unit Price $86.00 $4.00 / S.F. $25.00 $8.75 $2.25 $6.00

Alternates

Alternate Bid No. 1 (35.00) $17,800.00 $4,520.00 $4,200.00 $3,300.00

Alternate Bid No. 2 $142,169.00 (25,200.00) $3,783.00 (300.00) $950.00

Alternate Bid No. 3 $31,728.00 $17,800.00 $22,146.00 $27,500.00 $26,000.00

Alternate Bid No. 4 $29,195.00 $11,278.00 $7,200.00 $24,227.00 $10,300.00 $9,500.00

Voluntary Substitutions No No No No No No

Unit Price

Alternates

Collins & Aikman.

Collins & Akiman.
3. If this Alternate Bid is accepted, the Lump Sum Base Bid shall be modified as follows for providing carpet C & A Infinity carpet in lieu of

C & A Qwest.
4. If this Alternate Bid is accepted, the Lump Sum Base Bid shall be modified as follows for work related to providing new vinyl composition tile

and vinyl base at Rooms B102, 318, 330, 400 and 420 as specified in Section 09650.

BCDM PROJECT NO. 4367-00

2, If this Alternate Bid is accepted, the Lump Sum Base Bid shall be modified as follows for providing carpet manufactured by Mohawk in lieu of

Beringer Ciaccio Dennell Mabrey

22 February 2006
BID TABULATION

KIEWIT MIDDLE SCHOOL
FLOORING REPLACEMENT CONTRACT

10 15 North 98th Street, Suite 300
Omaha, NE 68114-2334

1. If this Alternate Bid is accepted, the Lump Sum Base Bid shall be modified as follows for providing carpet manufactured by Lee's in lieu of

1. Add/Deduct ($_____) for each 1/8" depth per square yard.

Page 1

78



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Rockwell Elementary HVAC Contract

MEETING DATE: March 6, 2006

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Rockwell Elementary HVAC Contract – The award of the contract for Phase II of

the HVAC renovation project at Rockwell Elementary School.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval x Discussion Information Only .

BACKGROUND: The first phase of the HVAC renovation project at Rockwell Elementary School
was conducted last summer. This is the second phase of the project.

Five bids were received on the project. A copy of the bid tab is attached.

The low bid on this project is $4,379 above the estimated budget. It is the
recommendation of the administration that the low bid be accepted rather than
delaying the project and hoping for lower bids in the future.

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the contract for Phase II of the HVAC renovation project at
Rockwell Elementary School be awarded to the Ray Martin Company in the
amount of $142,300 (with such amount including the base bid only) and that the
Associate Superintendent for General Administration be authorized and directed to
execute any and all documents related to such project.

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: Immediate. Project to be completed this summer.

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

79



80



PROJECT:  Rockwell Elementary HVAC
Phase II

BID DATE: February 21, 2006
BID TIME:
MEI PROJECT NO.: 05207

BIDDERS BASE BID Alternate #1 
Manufacturer

Alternate #1 
Add/Deduct $

Alternate #2 
Add $

TOTAL BID 
with Alt #2 Comments

Babel $183,400 NA NA $4,288 $187,688

Grunwald $152,400 Florida HP $4,175 $3,800 $156,200

Trane $8,078

Mechanical Systems $164,370 NA NA $3,720 $168,090

Ray Martin $142,300 NA NA $5,000 $147,300

Thermal Services $151,905 Florida HP $4,945 $4,049 $155,954

Trane $9,742

Description of Bids
Base Bid: Perform and complete all work required for a HVAC upgrade as indicated in the Construction Documents dated 1/24/06.

Alternate #1: Provide alternate bids for use of alternate heat pump manufacturers.

Alternate #2: Provide alternate bid for new DDC controls for Heating/Ventilating unit in gymnasium.

BID TABULATION

81



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Ackerman Long Lead Materials Contracts

MEETING DATE: March 6, 2006

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Ackerman Long Lead Materials Contracts – The award of contract for certain

items related to the Ackerman Elementary School.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval x Discussion Information Only .

BACKGROUND: There are some materials that need to be ordered in advance for the Ackerman
Elementary School renovation project. The District is purchasing these items at
this time so that they will be manufactured and delivered in time for the summer
renovation project.

Although the materials are being purchased by the District, they will be assigned to
the general contractor for installation. The bids for the general contractor are not
yet due, therefore, we don’t know who that will be. While we are in the process of
bidding the project to general contractors, we need to make sure the “long lead
materials” are being manufactured and are ready for delivery.

When we opened the bids on February 28th, we were surprised to find that we had
only one bidder for each of the long lead items. Also, the total for the bids was
about $4,000 over the cost estimate.

Since these items are only a small portion of the total project and are necessary for
the timely completion of the project, we are recommending that the bids be
accepted and contract awarded accordingly.

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that contracts for long lead items for the Ackerman Elementary
School project be awarded as follows: (1) to Gartner & Associates Company, Inc.
for a packaged roof top HVAC unit in the amount of $54,623; (2) to Western
Laminates, Inc. for manufactured casework in the amount of $69,340; and (3) to
Metal Doors and Hardware for hollow metal frames, how metal doors, wood
doors, and hardware in the amount of $24,718; and, further, that the Associate
Superintendent for General Administration be authorized and directed to execute
any and all documents related to such project.

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: Immediate.

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

82



83



84



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Hollow Metal Door & Frame Replacement Contract

MEETING DATE: March 6, 2006

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Hollow Metal Door & Frame Replacement Contract – The contract for the

replacement of hollow metal doors and frames at various sites during the summer.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval x Discussion Information Only .

BACKGROUND: One of the summer project approved earlier was the replacement of hollow metal
doors and frames at various building in the District (see the attached letter).

Bids for the project were received on February 21st. There were only two bids
received. Subsequent to the meeting, the low bid withdrew when an error was
discovered.

The second to low bid was from Rife Construction.

The Alternates on the bid are certain doors and/or frames at the buildings noted.
These alternates were included to ensure that the project came in on budget.

After review (and with the intent of staying within the estimated budget), it is
recommended that all alternates be accepted with the exception of Alternate #5.
Parts of Alternate #5 can be accepted and still remain within the budget. The notes
in the recommendation (“e.g., HO111A) are references in the bid specification to
the doors and/or frames.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the contract for the replacement of hollow metal doors and
frames at various sites in the District be awarded to Rife Construction, Inc. in the
amount of $123,466 (with such amount including the base bid plus Alternates #1,
#2, #3, #4, and #6 and with the following portions of Alternate #5: doors HO111A,
HO111B, and HO1117) and, further, that the Associate Superintendent for General
Administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents
related to such project.

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: Immediate.

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

85



86



87



AGENDA ITEM: Administrator Recommended for Hire

MEETING DATE: March 6, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

TITLE & DESCRIPTION: Executive Director of Planning, Evaluation & Information Services,
Don Stroh Administration Center

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: The position was advertised in the Omaha World Herald, in Education
Week, on American Educational Research Association website, on
CareerLink and in Millard’s job postings. Fourteen applications were
received (eleven from outside the district and three from within the
district). The applications were reviewed by Dr. Kirby Eltiste, Dr.
John Crawford, and Dr. Keith Lutz. Dr. Eltiste, Dr. Lutz, and/or Dr.
Crawford “pre-interviewed” two external applicants. Three applicants
from within the district were selected to interview for the position. The
interview teams included Dr. Kirby Eltiste, Dr. Mark Feldhausen, Dr.
Keith Lutz, Dr. Martha Bruckner, Steve Moore, Dr. Rick Werkheiser,
Peggy Brendel, Sharon Freeman, and Nancy Ballard. I am
recommending the following individual for the position.

Jon Lopez Recommended for Executive Director of Planning, Evaluation &
Information Services, Don Stroh Administration Center. He is
currently Principal at Millard South High School. Previously he was a
High School Principal for Plattsmouth Community Schools from 1997-
2001. From1995-1997 he was Assistant Principal at Bryan Middle
School in Omaha and a teacher at Bryan for the 1994/95 school year.
From 1986-1994 he was a teacher at Millard North High School.

Education: BS - Secondary Education; MA –Secondary Administration. He is
currently working on his Doctor of Education at the University of
Nebraska – Omaha.

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: N/A

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

PERSON RECOMMENDING: Kirby Eltiste

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:

88



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: March 6, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: Personnel items: (1) Hires and (2) Resignations.

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: NA

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION
OR REJECTION: N/A

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Dr. Kirby Eltiste

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: __________________________________

89



March 6, 2006

RESIGNATIONS

Recommend: the following resignations be accepted:

1. Alyssia Griffin – Foreign Language Teacher at West High School. She is resigning due to
relocation. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

2. Mary Hough – Currently on Leave of Absence (Speech Pathologist at Sandoz Elementary School).
She is resigning due to family reasons. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school
year.

3. Jennifer Houlihan – Currently on Leave of Absence (Grade 2 teacher at Norris Elementary
School). She is resigning due to family reasons. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06
school year.

4. Becky Wills – Montessori teacher at Montclair Elementary School. She is resigning due to
relocation. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

90



March 6, 2006

TEACHERS RECOMMENDED FOR HIRE

Recommend: the following teachers be hired:

1. Stephen R. Schoening – MA – University of Nebraska at Lincoln. Foreign Language teacher at
Kiewit Middle School for the 2006/07 school year.

2. Catalina Avina –MA+36 – University of Kansas, Lawrence, KS. Foreign Language teacher at
Russell Middle School for the 2006/07 school year. Previous experience: Brentwood, CA
(1998/99).

91



92



93



94



95



96



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Legislative Update

MEETING DATE: March 6, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Office of the Superintendent

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Legislative Update for the 99th Legislature.

ACTION DESIRED: APPROVAL DISCUSSION INFORMATION ONLY XX

Issues and Happening
 Hearings are over. The committee has not moved any of the Metro boundary bills out of committee at

this point. There is still time this week for more committee work and after that they will have to make
time while bills are being debated.

Dates and Reminders
 The Legislature will be in recess on March 3, 6, 17, 20 and 31.

New Legislation we are tracking:
 LB 803 – Define and require reporting of total per pupil cost by school districts.
 LB 821 – Senator Erdman’s bill that allows for enrollment of part-time students.
 LB 998 – Provide for the extension of school district boundaries. This is Senator Cornett’s bill to

resolve the Bellevue and Papillion-LaVista boundary issue.
 LB 1006 – This was introduced by Senator Bourne at the request of the Governor to reduce the property

tax levy to $1.025 per $100 of valuation for the 2006-2007 school year. The levy is set to drop to $1.00
in 2007.

 LB 1017 – This is the bill sponsored by Senator Kopplin that incorporates the Coalition proposals
protecting our boundaries, providing transportation for children on free and reduced meals and allowing
inter-local agreements to create magnate schools. Senators Pahls, Pedersen, Jensen, Brown and Stuhr
have signed on as well.

 LB 1024 – This is Senator Raikes bill on learning communities. It is a massive document and will
require time to review. It appears to have all of the elements we expected in that it applies to Douglas
and Sarpy school districts, forms a new board called Learning Community Boards, sets a common levy,
a capital fund levy, focus schools and programs, and reorganization criteria in the future.

 LB 1107 and 1148 allow students to self-administer medications for diabetes and asthma. Our current
policy is in line with these bills.

 LB 1167 – Senator Redfield’s bill has a high school and feeders in a district and sets the size at a
minimum of 4,000 students.

 LB 1208 is the result of the interim work on Distance Education. This bill lays out an infrastructure for
school districts to upgrade technology capability and access academic offerings.

Carryover Legislation we are tracking:
 LB 129 – is a comprehensive school finance bill. It is likely that part or this entire bill may become a

part of LB 1024. Senator Raikes has indicated that this bill is a priority. He has strong feelings that this
legislation needs to be considered. This bill is currently held in committee.

 LB 579 – is a technical clean-up bill that repeals the 1981 law and has language that changes items such
as transportation, option enrollment, and items dealing with early childhood.

 LB 627 – is a bill that will require school districts to adopt a policy on bullying. This bill is not yet out
of committee.

97



STRATEGIC PLAN: Implemented Strategies and Board Goals

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Angelo Passarelli

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:
(Signature)

98



1

NINETY-NINTH LEGISLATURE
SECOND SESSION

Revised March 1, 2006

The following represent bills and constitutional amendments introduced during the 2006 Second
Session of the 99th Legislature that may affect Millard Public Schools or education in general (it
also includes carryover bills from the 2005 First Session). (“New” information will be in
boldface.) “Hot bills” are shown with a border. Bills that have been passed, indefinitely
postponed or withdrawn are listed last.

“Hot” bills will be in a “hot box.”

Abbreviations Used for Status of Bills

HC Held in Committee LIV Line Item Veto
GF General File VO Veto Overridden
SF Select File W Withdrawn
FR Final Reading P Passed by Legislature
IPP Indefinitely Postponed (killed) S Signed by Governor
V Vetoed * Senator Priority Bill
HD Hearing Date ** Committee Priority Bill
--LB Amended into another bill *** Speaker Priority Bill
CA Constitutional Amendment LR Legislative Resolution
FA Floor Amendment

CARRYOVER BILLS FROM FIRST SESSION

 LR 1CA (Schrock) Constitutional amendment to permit the Legislature to authorize
spending part of the principal of the perpetual funds for the common schools
(HD: 2/28) (HC)
MONITOR

 LR 3CA (Beutler) Constitutional amendment to terminate term limit provisions for
members of the Legislature (Executive Board) (HD: 2/9) (HC)

 LR 4CA (Beutler) Constitutional amendment to create the Ethics and Compensation
Review Commission, change and eliminate compensation provisions for
employees/members of the Legislative, provide for a legislative code of ethics
(Executive Board) (HD: 2/17) (HC)

 LR 5CA (Beutler) Constitutional amendment to provide for recall of members of the
Legislature and repeal term limits for such members (Executive Board)
(HD: 2/9) (HC)

99



2

 **LR 14CA (Schimek) (Executive Board Priority Bill) Constitutional amendment to
repeal term limit provisions for members of the Legislature (Executive Board)
(HD: 2/9) (HC)

 LR 16CA (Schrock) Constitutional amendment to change term limit provisions for
members of the Legislature (Executive Board) (HC)

 LR 22CA (Brashear) Constitutional amendment to change distribution of certain
forfeited or seized money (Judiciary Committee) (HC)

 LB 5 (Thompson) Change qualifications for membership on the State Board of
Education (HD: 2/7) (HC)

 LB 43 (Redfield) Provide immunity for employers for disclosure of certain
employment information (Judiciary Committee) (HD: 2/23) (HC)
MONITOR

 LB 75 (Beutler) Authorize certain cities to make public improvements and assess the
cost (Urban Affairs Committee) (2/2 Com AM22 adopted) (2/2 – AM2042 adopted)
(SF: 2/6 – AM7151)

 LB 77 (Baker) Change motor vehicle registration fee distribution (HD: 1/18) (GF 2/25

 LB 87 (Byars) Change provisions relating to deaf and hard of hearing persons (Health
Committee) (HD: 1/19) (GF: 1/27) ) (1/18 – AM1812) (SF: 2/1 – AM7147)
MONITOR

 LB 95 (Janssen) Change school reorganization provisions (HD: 2/28) (HC)
MONITOR

 ***LB 101 (Byars, Connealy) (Speaker Priority Bill – 3/15) Provide for early
intervention services for children with autism spectrum disorder (HD: 2/10) (GF: 3/1)

 LB 102 (Natural Resources Committee) Relating to storm water drainage, sewer
system charges and fees (HD: 1/19) (HC)
OPPOSE

 LB 127 (Cunningham, Burling, Combs, et al.) Authorize the reporting of school bus
safety violations as prescribed (Transportation Committee) (HD: 2/1) (HC)
MONITOR

 **LB 129 (Education Committee) (Education Committee Priority Bill)
Comprehensive school finance bill similar to LB 698 (2004) (HD: 1/25)
SUPPORT

 LB 145 (Price) Provide for school bond state aid (HD: 2/15) (HC)
MONITOR

100



3

 LB 197 (Raikes) Include funds received due to annexation or replatting in formula
resources in the state aid formula (HD: 1/24) (HC)
MONITOR

 LB 204 (Thompson) Provide a rate of payment for certain medical services and
emergency protective custody situations (Health Committee) (HD: 1/26)
(HC)
MONITOR

 *LB 228 (Howard) (Howard Priority Bill) Provide tax levy and state aid increases for
full-day kindergarten expenses as prescribed (HD: 2/1) (GF: 2/16))
SUPPORT

 LB 230 (Redfield) Require a nonunion employee to reimburse a union for legal
services requested by such employee (Business and Labor Committee)
(HD: 2/28) (GF: 3/8)
MONITOR

 LB 231 (Heidemann) Change the maximum school levy as prescribed (Revenue
Committee) (HD: 2/25) (HC)
MONITOR

 *LB 239 (Schimek, Aguilar, Combs, et al.) (Schimek Priority Bill) Permit certain
students who attended Nebraska high schools to establish residency (HD: 3/15)
(GF: 6/3)
MONITOR

 LB 248 (Baker) Change motor vehicle tax calculations (Revenue Committee) (HD:
1/27) (GF: 1/31 – AM147) (1/18 – AM1820) (SF: 2/6 – AM7153)
MONITOR

 ***LB 269 (Erdman) (Speaker Priority Bill) Provide a procedure for judicial
emancipation for minors (Judiciary Committee) (HD 2/24) (GF: 4/25)
MONITOR

 LB 281 (Cornett) Change limitation of action provisions under the Political
Subdivisions Tort Claims Act (Judiciary Committee) (HD: 2/10) (HC)
MONITOR

 LB 289 (Mines) Change annexation provisions of cities of the first class (Urban
Affairs Committee) (HD: 2/22) (GF: 3/2)
MONITOR

101



4

 LB 304 (Schrock) Adopt the Education Buildings Review Commission Act
(HD: 2/15) (HC)
MONITOR

 LB 305 (Byars) Prohibit use of tobacco products on public and private educational
property (Health Committee) (HD: 2/3) (GF: 2/17 – AM374)
MONITOR

 LB 314 (Howard, Aguilar, Byars, et al.) Create a Nebraska Heritage Week
(HD: 3/1) (HC)

 LB 326 (Raikes) Change average daily membership requirements for freeholders'
petitions (HD: 2/28) (GF 3/9)
MONITOR

 LB 354 (Preister) Provide a service fee for employees who are not members of certain
labor unions (Business & Labor Committee) (HD: 2/28) (HC)
MONITOR

 LB 358 (Raikes) Change tax levy provisions relating to judgments against unified
school systems (Revenue Committee) (HD: 2/25) (HC)
MONITOR

 LB 363 (Bourne) Change penalty provisions for criminal attempt (Judiciary
Committee) (HD: 1/26) (GF: 2/3) (SF: 3/9)
MONITOR

 LB 393 (Smith) Prohibit acts relating to electronic mail (Judiciary Committee)
(HD: 3/11) (HC)

 LB 495 (Stuhr) Provide a medical cost-of-living adjustment for school employees
(Retirement Committee) (HD: 3/2) (HC)

 ***LB 505 (Erdman) (Speaker Priority Bill – 3/15) Change the age of majority in
certain instances (Judiciary Committee) (HD: 2/24) (HC)

 LB 510 (Combs) Provide for immunity relating to employment references (Judiciary
Committee) (HD: 2/23) (HC)

 LB 554 (Beutler) Change minimum wage and training wage provisions (Business &
Labor Committee) (HD: 2/14) (GF: 3/10)

 LB 556 (Beutler) Change provisions relating to financial aid for purchase of required
textbooks and supplies (HD: 3/14) (HC)

102



5

 LB 560 (Wehrbein) Change funding provisions relating to the Information
Technology Infrastructure Fund (Appropriations Committee) (HD: 3/16) (HC)
MONITOR

 LB 561 (Kopplin) Provide free school meals for children of deployed military
personnel (HD: 2/14) (HC)

 LB 565 (Wehrbein) Adopt the Land Information System Program Act and provide
funding (Government Committee) (HD 2/16) (HC)

 LB 579 (Raikes) Change provisions relating to schools (HD: 2/7) (GF: 3/9 – AM525)
MONITOR

 LB 627 (Howard) Require school boards to adopt a bullying policy (HD: 2/14) (HC)
OPPOSE

 LB 634 (Raikes) Change and eliminate certain school transportation provisions
(HD: 1/31) (GF: 2/1)

 LB 637 (Raikes) Create and provide duties for the Educational Service Unit
Coordinating Council (HD: 2/7) (HC)

 LB 661 (Price) Change employment provisions and adopt the Advocacy Leave Act
(Business & Labor Committee) (HD: 3/14)(HC)

 LB 670 (Landis) Prohibit acts relating to computers and electronic mail (Judiciary
Committee) (HD: 3/11) (HC)

 LB 671 (Landis) Provide county personnel policies for transferring employees from
the state or other political subdivisions to a county at county request (Government
Committee) (HD: 2/17) (GF: 2/23)

 LB 690 (Stuhr, Combs, Heidemann, et al) Adopt the Career Education Partnership
Act (HD: 3/1) (GF: 3/10)

 LB 704 (McDonald, Burling, Kremer) Change provisions relating to equalization aid
to schools (HD: 1/31) (HC)

 LB 717 (Raikes) Adopt the Reorganization Building Aid Act (HD: 2/15) (HC)

 LB 732 (Bourne) Change state deposits for school retirement (Retirement Committee)
(HD: 2/22) (HC)

 LB 740 (Schimek) Change provisions relating to the limitation of actions for certain
political subdivisions (Judiciary Committee) (HD: 3/17) (HC)

 *LB 759 (Chambers) (Chambers Priority Bill) Prohibit employment discrimination
based on sexual orientation (Judiciary Committee) (HD: 2/23) (HC)

103



6

2006 BILLS

 LR 253CA (Hudkins, Fischer) Constitutional amendment to provide for a vote prior
to dissolution, affiliation, and merger of school districts (HD: 2/27)
MONITOR

 LB 795 (Cunningham, Raikes) Change provisions relating to the repayment of
incentive payments by school districts (HD: 1/17) (GF: 1/18 – AM1877) (SF: 2/23 –
AM7170)

 LB 803 (Kopplin) Define and require reporting of total per pupil cost by school
districts (HD: 2/6)
SUPPORT

 LB 806 (Landis) Adopt the Car Tax Reduction Act (Revenue Committee) (HD: 2/2)

 *LB 821 (Erdman) (Erdman Priority Bill) Provide for participation and part-time
enrollment in public schools by exempt students (HD: 1/24) (GF: 2/23 – Com
AM2314)

 LB 825 (Bourne, Dw. Pedersen) Change infectious disease testing provisions when
the state is guardian of the patient (Judiciary Committee) (HD: 1/20) (GF: 2/21 – Com
AM1982)

 LB 839 (Hudkins) Provide for reversing orders merging certain school districts
contingent upon the outcome of an election (HD: 2/27)

 LB 860 (Raikes) Provide an alternative to bonding for educational service unit
treasurers (HD: 1/17) (GF: 1/18) (SF: 2/23/)

 LB 865 (Howard) Change certain requirements involving early childhood education
endorsements (HD: 1/23)

 LB 881 (Stuhr) Provide for transportation of high-needs special education students
(HD: 1/17) (GF: 2/16 – Com AM2334)

 LB 890 (Janssen) Allow school districts to exceed the applicable allowable growth
rate for increases in energy and health insurance costs (HD: 2/6)

 *LB 898 (Preister) (Preister Priority Bill) Change provisions relating to the Open
Meetings Act (Government Committee) (HD: 1/25) (GF: 2/21 – Com AM2116)

 LB 946 (Wehrbein) Recognize American Sign Language as a distinct language and
authorize schools to offer it as a foreign language (HD: 1/17)

104



7

 LB 969 (Byars) Provide limitations on school boards establishing alternating
secondary course offerings (HD: 1/24)

 LB 984 (Howard) Prohibit employer mandated employee participation in certain
religious or political matters (Judiciary Committee) (HD: 2/23)

 LB 987 (Preister, Dw. Pedersen) Create the Education Trust Fund and provide for
state funding for increased teacher salaries (HD: 2/14)

 LB 989 (Smith, Erdman, Fischer, et al.) Suspend the implementation of statutory
provisions subject to the referendum process (Government Committee) (HD: 2/9)

 LB 998 (Cornett, Preister) Provide for extension of certain school district boundaries
(HD: 1/31)
OPPOSE

 *LB 1006 (Bourne, Baker, Combs, et al. at the request of the Governor) (Bourne
Priority Bill) Change provisions relating to school levies and state aid certifications
(HD: 2/6)
MONITOR

 LB 1017 (Kopplin, Brown, Jensen, Pahls, et al.) Change provisions relating to
schools concerning tax levy limitations, transportation, and district boundaries
(HD: 1/30)
SUPPORT

 **LB 1024 (Raikes) (Education Committee Priority Bill) Provide for learning
communities (HD: 1/30) (2/6 – Smith motion to postpone pending)
OPPOSE

 LB 1050 (Wehrbein) Create a study committee relating to countywide school districts

 LB 1059 (Schimek) Provide emergency expenditure procedures for school districts
(Government Committee) (HD: 2/16)

 LB 1073 (Raikes) Eliminate property tax on tangible personal property and certain
sales tax exemptions and increase state aid and tax levy authority (Revenue
Committee) (HD: 2/8)

 LB 1074 (Raikes) Change high school graduation requirements and require
development of individual academic plans (HD: 1/24) (GF: - 2/9 – Com AM2202)
OPPOSE

105



8

 LB 1089 (Janssen) Exempt a portion of school site and building fund levy from levy
limits (Revenue Committee) (HD: 1/26)

 LB 1090 (Howard) Provide for extended contract days for teachers (HD: 2/14)

 LB 1093 (Thompson) Modify a duty of the State Board of Education to establish a
core curriculum standard (HD: 2/13)

 *LB 1107 (Thompson) (Thompson Priority Bill) Permit students to self-manage
diabetes at schools and related activities (Health Committee) (HD: 2/15)

 LB 1119 (Heidemann, Fischer, Flood, et al.) Defer certain school reorganization
requirements by one year (HD: 2/27)

 LB 1142 (Stuhr) Redefine terms relating to retirement of school employees
(Retirement Committee) (HD: 2/22)

 ***LB 1148 (Cornett, Aguilar, Baker, et al.) (Speaker Priority Bill) Provide for
student self-administration of asthma or anaphylaxis medication at school or related
activities (Health Committee) (HD: 2/15)

 LB 1165 (Janssen) Provide an exemption for insurance, drug enforcement, and
retirement costs for tax levy and budget purposes (Revenue Committee) (HD: 1/25)

 LB 1167 (Redfield) Provide for creation of new Class III school districts in certain
areas (HD: 1/30)
OPPOSE

 LB 1182 (Thompson) Authorize public employers to include elected officials in
certain employer benefit plans (Government Committee) (HD: 2/15)

 LB 1194 (Raikes) Change provisions relating to schools (HD: 2/14)

 LB 1203 (Stuhr, Byars, Kopplin, et al.) Adopt the Civics Nebraska Partnership
Council (HD: 2/13)
OPPOSE

 LB 1204 (Dw. Pedersen) Provide for education match certificates and special
education (HD: 2/14)
OPPOSE

106



9

 *LB 1208 (Raikes, Baker, D. Pederson, et al.) (Raikes Priority Bill) Change education
provisions and provide for distance education services (HD: 2/13)

 LB 1243 (Kremer, Baker, Burling, et al.) Require arbitration for disputes involving
certain school districts over certain annexed territory (HD: 1/31)

 LB 1247 (Schimek, Stuhr) Provide authority to the State Board of Education relating
to instruction in American citizenship (HD: 2/13)

 *LB 1256 (Brashear, Baker, Dw. Pedersen, et al.) (Brashear Priority Bill) Create the
Nebraska Early Childhood Endowment and authorize a board of trustees (HD: 2/21)

 *LB 1262 (Brashear) (Pahls Priority Bill) Provide for school district interdistrict
academy of excellence plans (HD: 1/30)
MONITOR

APPROVED BILLS

“KILLED” BILLS

 LR 23 (Howard) Urge Congress to fully fund the No Child Left Behind Act
(HD: 1/31) ((IPP: 2/9))
SUPPORT

 LR 24CA (Raikes) Constitutional amendment to permit the Legislature to direct fines,
penalties, and license fees to the perpetual fund for common school purposes (HD:
2/28) (IPP: 2/9)
MONITOR

 LB 141 (Price) Eliminate school budget restrictions relating to allowable reserves
(HD: 1/25) (IPP: 2/8))
SUPPORT

107



10

 LB 223 (Fischer) Create the School Finance Review Committee (HD: 1/25) (IPP: 2/9)
MONITOR

 LB 229 (Howard) Change requirements for school district fall membership reports
(HD: 1/25) (IPP: 2/9)
MONITOR

 LB 285 (Stuthman) Adopt the Nutrition in Schools Act (HD: 2/14) (IPP: 2/9)
MONITOR

 LB 327 (Raikes) Change school district average daily membership requirements for
freeholder petitions (HD: 2/28) (IPP: 2/8)
MONITOR

 LB 347 (Bourne) Provide for socioeconomic integration plans relating to the
enrollment option program (HD: 2/1) (IPP: 2/8)
MONITOR

 LB 350 (Bourne) Provide for inclusion of prekindergarten programs in the state aid
formula as prescribed (HD: 2/1) (IPP: 2/8)
MONITOR

 LB 357 (Raikes) Change withdrawal and dissolution provisions for unified school
systems (HD: 2/28) (IPP: 2/8)
MONITOR

 LB 378 (Howard) Create the Commission on School Finance and require a study
(HD: 1/25) (IPP: 2/8)
MONITOR

 LB 416 (Howard, Beutler, Combs, et al) Change age limitations for state wards
(Referred to Health Committee) (HD: 2/2) (IPP: 1/9)

 LB 467 (Byars) Creating Essential Educational Opportunities for All Students Act
(HD: 2/7) (IPP: 2/9)
MONITOR

 LB 502 (Stuhr) Change provisions relating to average formula cost per student
(HD: 1/31) (IPP: 2/8)
MONITOR

 LB 574 (Kremer) Change sibling provisions under the enrollment option program
(HD: 2/1) (IPP: 2/8)
MONITOR

108



11

 LB 578 (Raikes) Change provisions relating to payment of property tax refunds
(Revenue Committee) (HD: 2/17) (IPP: 2/6)

 LB 595 (Kruse) Change weighting of schools demographic factors within the state aid
formula (HD: 1/31) (IPP: 2/9)
OPPOSE

 LB 616 (Howard) Change reimbursement provisions under the Special Education Act
(HD: 1/31) (IPP: 2/9)
MONITOR

 LB 635 (Raikes) Change tax levy provisions relating to schools (Revenue Committee)
(HD: 2/3) (IPP: 2/6)
MONITOR

 LB 636 (Raikes) Change cost calculations for wards’ education and special education
(HD: 2/14) (IPP: 2/9)

 LB 681 (Schimek, Combs, Stuthman) Adopt the Physical Education in Schools Act
(HD: 3/1) (IPP: 2/9)
OPPOSE

 LB 718 (Raikes) Change educational service unit board provisions (HD: 2/7)
(IPP: 2/8)
MONITOR

 LB 769 (Friend) Provide an income tax credit for certain educational expenses
(Revenue Committee) (HD: 1/25) (IPP: 1/30)

 LB 804 (Kopplin) Change a tax levy limitation relating to schools (Revenue
Committee) (HD: 1/26) (IPP: 2/8)
SUPPORT

 LB 880 (Flood) Provide for reimbursement for special education costs for certain
students in residential placements (HD: 1/17) (IPP: 2/9)

 LB 893 (Kremer, Aguilar, Johnson, et al.) (Revenue Committee) Change the
definition of allowable growth for political subdivisions (HD: 1/26) (IPP: 2/6)LB 899
(Preister) Provide powers and duties to the Public Council (IPP: 2/7)

 LB 900 (Preister) Redefine public body for purposes of the Open Meetings Act
(Government Committee) (1/11: AM1856) (HD: 1/25) (IPP: 2/7)

 LB 961 (Louden, Burling, Combs, et al.) Redefine a term relating to the Tax Equity
and Educational Opportunities Support Act (HD: 2/6) (IPP: 2/8)

109



12

 LB 976 (Synowiecki) Exempt certain public retirement benefits from income taxation
(Revenue Committee) (HD: 2/22)

 LB 988 (Preister) Provide an income tax credit for teachers (Revenue Committee)
(HD: 1/25) (IPP: 1/30)

 LB 993 (Byars) Provide kindergarten programs meet standards adopted by the State
Board of Education (HD: 1/23) (IPP: 2/9)

 LB 999 (Brown, Baker, Howard) Change provisions relating to training requirements
for providers of child care and program licensure (IPP: 1/30)

 LB 1118 (Heidemann) Change education financing provisions by adding alternative
criteria for sparse cost grouping (HD: 2/6) (IPP: 2/8)
OPPOSE

 LB 1138 (Heidemann) Provide for additional state aid to education (HD: 2/6) (IPP:
2/8)

 LB 1211 (Cornett) Change provisions relating to Americanism instruction (HD: 2/13)
(IPP: 2/14)

Prepared by: Approved by:
Angelo D. Passarelli Keith W. Lutz
Director of Administrative Affairs Superintendent of Schools

110


	Board Meeting March 6, 2006
	Agenda
	Administrative Memorandum
	E.1. Board Minutes February 20, 2006
	Financials
	F.1. Employees of the Month
	G.1. Approval of Policy 8000 - General Policy Statement
	G.2. Approval of Policy 10000 - Shared Decision Making
	H.1. Approval of Rule 10000.1 - Shared Decision Making - Site Based Planning and Shared Decision Making
	H.2. Approval of Rule 4511.1 - Personnel - Voluntary Early Separation Program
	H.3. Approval of Rule 5110.1 - Pupil Services - Transfer of Students within the District
	H.4.-H.12 Policies and Rules for Reaffirmation
	H.4. *Reaffirm Policy 6031 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - School Day for Students
	H.5. *Reaffirm Policy 6040 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Ceremonies and Observances
	H.6 *Reaffirm Policy 6041 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Holiday Observances - Laws and Requirements
	H.7. *Reaffirm Policy 6610 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Multi-Cultural Education
	H.8 *Reaffirm Policy 6635 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Students with Disabilities
	H.9. *Reaffirm Rule 6020.1 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - School Calendar
	H.10 *Reaffirm Rule 6031.1 - Curriuclum, Instruction, and Assessment - School Day for Students
	H.11. *Reaffirm Rule 6040.1 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Ceremonies and Observances 
	H.12. *Reaffirm Rule 6610.1 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Multi-Cultural Education
	H.13. Approval of Beadle Middle School Design Development
	H.14. Award Neihardt Elementary Floor Covering Contract
	H.15. Award Willowdale Elementary Floor Covering Contract
	H.16 Award Ezra Elementary Floor Covering Contract
	H.17 Award Kiewit Middle School Floor Covering Contract
	H.18 Award Rockwell Elementary HVAC Contract
	H.19. Approval of Ackerman Elementary Long Lead Materials Contracts
	H.20 Award Hollow Metal Doors and Frame Replacement Contract
	H.21. Administrator for Hire
	H.22. Personnel Actions:  Resignations, and New Hires
	I.1.Enrollment Report
	I.2. Legislative Update



